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Vision

Mission

To be a globally reputed chemical 
manufacturing company with respect to 
our Research, Technologies, Quality, 
Safety and care of our Environment.

To grow exponentially in a multi-faceted 
manner in the group chemistries that 
we are proficient in and most importantly, 
through our customer support.
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Company Overview

Anupam Rasayan India Limited is one of the leading companies engaged in the custom 
synthesis and manufacturing of specialty chemicals in India. We commenced operations in 
1984 as a manufacturer of conventional products and have, over the years, evolved in to 
custom synthesis and manufacturing of life science related specialty chemicals and other 
specialty chemicals, which involve multi-step synthesis and complex technologies, for a 
diverse base of Indian and global customers. Our key focus in our custom synthesis and 
manufacturing operations is developing in-house innovative processes for manufacturing 
products requiring complex chemistries and achieving cost optimization. 

Anupam Rasayan India Limited has been a valuable partner to its customers for custom 
manufacturing of multi-synthesis molecules such as agrochemical actives & intermediate, 
pharmaceutical intermediates, home and personal care chemicals and polymer and 
material science products for its customers. We are an ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 
14001:2015 certified company with sound technology, environment consciousness, rich 
history of innovation through research, and commitment to excellence towards quality 
and sustainability.

We have developed a strong R&D structure to drive company growth and hold the prestige 
of introducing many firsts to Indian market space. Thanks to our R&D team, Anupam 
Rasayan India Limited has secured a strong market position, because we strongly believe 
that continued investment in Research and Development activities is imperative for 
continued success and growth. Our state-of-the-art Research and Development Centre is 
a perfect testimony of the commitment to this belief.
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We have six manufacturing units located in the state of Gujarat:

Units in Sachin, SuratFour

Production Unit III (Jhagadia)

Two Units in Jhagadia, Bharuch

17th Annual Report 2019-20



4

GMP Production Facility (Sachin)

Production Unit IV (Jhagadia)

New R&D Centre and Pilot Facilities
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Our Company During 
COVID- 19

Sanitization and preventive measures during COVID-19 pandemic

Employees of the Company distributing ration kits to the needy
people during COVID-19
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Corporate Overview

Composition of Board Composition of Audit Committee

Composition of Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee

Composition of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Dr. Kiran Patel
Chairperson and Director

Mrs. Mona Desai
Vice-Chairperson and Whole- time Director

Mr. Anand Desai
Managing Director

Mr. Milan Thakkar
Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Mona Desai
Chairperson

Mr. Anand Desai
Member

Mr. Milan Thakkar
Member

Mr. Anand Desai
Chairperson

Mrs. Mona Desai
Member

Mr. Milan Thakkar
Member

Mr. Anand Desai
Chairperson

Mrs. Mona Desai
Member

Mr. Milan Thakkar
Member

Mr. Afzal Malkani
CFO

Mr. Afzal Malkani

Ms. Suchi Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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Our Plant Locations

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Registered Office Auditors

1 Production Unit - 1
and Admin Office

GIDC Industrial Estate, Sachin, Dist : Surat, 
Surat – 394230, Gujarat, India

2 Production Unit – 2 
and R & D Facility

GIDC Industrial Estate, Sachin, Dist : Surat, 
Surat – 394230, Gujarat, India

3 Production Unit – 3 

GIDC Industrial Estate, Sachin, Dist : Surat, 
Surat – 394230, Gujarat, India

4 Production Unit – 4

GIDC Industrial Estate, Jhagadia, Dist : 
Bharuch, Gujarat, India

5 Production Unit – 5

GIDC Industrial Estate, Jhagadia, Dist : 
Bharuch, Gujarat, India

6 Production Unit – 6 
and R & D Facility

GIDC Industrial Estate, Sachin, Dist : Surat, 
Surat – 394230, Gujarat, India

Rajendra & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai

8110, GIDC Industrial Estate, Sachin, Dist : Surat, 
Surat – 394230, Gujarat, India
Tel. No.: +91 – 261- 2398991 - 95
Fax : +91 – 261 – 2398996 
Email : office@anupamrasayan.com
Website: www.anupamrasayan.com
CIN: U24231GJ2003PLC042988

Statutory Auditors

M.D. Baid & Associates
Company Secretaries
Surat

Secretarial Auditor

Selenium Tower B
Plot 31 & 32, Gachibowli
Financial District, Nanakramguda
Serilingampally, Hyderabad 500 032
Telangana, India

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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We have two distinct business verticals 
(i) Life science related specialty chemicals comprising products related to agrochemicals, personal 
care and pharmaceuticals 
(ii) Other specialty chemicals, comprising specialty pigment and dyes, and polymer and paint additives.

We are operating six multi-purpose manufacturing facilities in Gujarat, India, with four facilities 
located at Sachin and two located at Jhagadia. All of our facilities are inspected and approved by 
various multinational corporations, on a periodic basis. In addition, given that our operations are 
primarily export oriented, the close proximity to Adani Hazira Port of our facilities located at 
Sachin helps us in reducing freight and logistics costs.

In our manufacturing operations, we provide large-scale custom synthesis and manufacturing 
services, offer multi-step synthesis and undertake complex chemical reactions. Our manufacturing 
facilities are highly automated and are equipped with glass-lined, titanium cladded and 
stainless-steel reactors enabling us to manufacture a diverse range of products, minimize the 
number of employees required, and as a result, reduce cost and human error. Further, our facilities 
are adequately supported with sophisticated analytical infrastructure, including, mass 
spectrometry, fully automated high-resolution gas chromatography - mass spectrometry, reaction 
calorimeters and differential screening calorimeters, enabling us to provide accurate analysis to 
our customers.

Business Overview
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We undertake hazard and operability studies before commencing commercial production 
of a new product and look to mitigate these hazards through process improvement, 

employees. Further, our integrated model has allowed us to develop insights across the 
entire value chain right from process innovation, process development and manufacturing 
to performing custom synthesis and manufacturing services for our customers. Our 
backward integrated Jhagadia Unit – 4 facility enables us to manufacture key raw materials 
for certain products, which has enabled us to reduce our reliance on imports, specifically 
from China, third party supplies and logistics costs.

We have, over the years, diversified, expanded and evolved our operations from a 
manufacturer of conventional products into custom synthesis and manufacturing of life 
science related specialty chemicals and other specialty chemicals, which have diverse 
applications across various industries. For instance, our life science related specialty 
chemical products cater to the 
industries, while our other specialty chemicals cater to specialty pigments and dyes, and 

Our integrated model that includes our automated manufacturing infrastructure, 
has allowed us to develop insights 

across the entire value chain right from process innovation and process development to 
performing custom synthesis and manufacturing services for our customers. The backward 
integration enables us to manufacture key raw materials for certain products, reduces our 
reliance on imports, third party supplies and logistics costs, provides us the flexibility to 
control our manufacturing processes and improves our operating margins, while the 
forward integration in our operations enables us to innovate processes, customize 
products and broaden our product offering to meet the needs of our customers.

We have a target driven approach to:

Environment 

Sustainability

Safety 
Measures 

Health
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Geographical Reach

Revenue Distribution:
International and Domestic Markets

31.95%68.05%
International Domestic
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Key Performance Indicators

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020

Revenue PAT 

29567

29922

34918

52057
53975

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020

4250

3478

3864

5023
5299

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020

EBITDA Earning Per Share (EPS)

8474
8112

7977

11257

14534

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020

8.50

6.22

5.18

6.73
6.78

Net Profit (Consolidated)

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020

4250
3478 3864

4927

5320

(   Lacs) (   Lacs)

(   Lacs)

(   Lacs)
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Corporate Social 
Responsiblity

Project1a

Sickle Cell Disease comprehensive care program

Objective1b

The Objective of the program was to develop comprehensive 
sickle cell care for approximately 300 patients every year 
at  SEWA Rural.
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Total 1012 patients were enrolled and 70% patients followed up at the weekly sickle cell 
clinic. These patients were from 623 villages from 7 districts of Gujarat & Maharashtra. 
About 80% of the registered patients received required pneumococcal vaccination. 
Currently 93 children receive prophylaxis penicillin. Coverage of pneumococcal 
vaccination increased from 0.5% to 80%. 88% of the eligible patients are on life saving drug 
Hydroxyurea. Significant improvement in quality of life was observed in the patients and 
quite a few lives were saved during the project period. 1068 patients were hospitalized 
and received the standard care as per the international standards in the program period. 
During baseline crisis rate for all patients was 249 crises/100-person year. During follow 
up, crisis rate decreased to 44 crisis/100 person years. There was significant decrease in 
hospitalization rate from 59 hospitalizations/100-person year at baseline to 51 
hospitalizations/100-person year at follow up period. At baseline blood transfusion rate 
was 41 BT/100-person year and during follow up blood transfusion rate to 31.5 BT/year. 
The average Hb level was 8.5 gm/dl at the baseline, while average at last follow up of each 
individual was 9.62gm/dl. Although after all our efforts, total 45 patients died since last 4 
years. The improving outcomes in the sickle cell disease patient is challenging, although 
above model suggest great acceptability and usability of the hospital based services among 
sickle cell disease patients.

Impact Assessment1c

Counsellors counselling about sickle cell disease at indoor patient department
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The Company is involved in eye health care medical project organizing the camp for free 
eye check-up and surgeries with the Rotary Eye Institute of Navsari. It is organized every 
year in the Sachin industrial region of Surat. The poor people of the region, villagers and a 
large number of labourers working in the factories are directly benefitted from this project. 
The Company has been taking up this project since the year 2007-08. The Rotary Eye 
Institute provides the services of the doctors without any cost and the Company covers the 
cost of the camp, check-up, surgeries, treatment cost including the spectacles and 
medicines to the patients.

Around 700 beneficiaries in 2012 & 2013 received the benefit. In the year 2017 around 
281 patients were given free eye check-up and spectacles around 431 patients were 
provided. In the camps of 2018-19, free spectacles to around 708 patients were given by 
the Company and surgeries on 210 patients were performed. Surgeries for the problems 
like Cataract with I.O.L., Squint eye surgery and Glaucoma Surgeries, RE Ecce + Iol 
operation, LE Ecce + Iol, RE Pterygium operation, and LE Pterygium and LE OCT operation 
have been performed on the patients.

Impact Assessment2c

Project2a

Organizing camp for free eye check-up and surgeries in
collaboration with the Rotary Eye Institute of Navsari.

Objective2b

Patients after eye surgery
and eye-check up at the camp
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The Company took up upgradation of physiotherapy department in Dinbandhu Charitable 
Hospital Trust, in Kholwad, Kamrej Taluka, Surat. The hospital serves nearly 60 villages 
near the Kamrej Taluka, Gujarat. The physiotherapy department of the hospital required 
renovation with technology and facilities to benefit the poor sections of the society. The 
contribution to this project has enhanced the capacity of the department to treat patients 
which were recommended earlier to other hospitals for treatment.

Total 1812 OPD patients in a period of 6 months were treated in the department after 
renovation with the new upgraded equipment. 1032 OPD patients were treated in the 
physiotherapy department from January’20 to March’20. Post- surgical physiotherapy 
treatment with the help of TKR, THR-CPM machines, Laser & D Tract-Laser machines, 
pneumatic compressive device for treatment in ligament injuries, low-back pain, swelling 
and edema quadriplegia, arthritis pain, PIVD etc. are now treated at the hospital’s 
physiotherapy department.

Impact Assessment3c

Project3a

Upgradation of Physiotherapy Department of 
Dinbandhu Charitable Hospital Trust.

Objective3b
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Inauguration of Physiotherapy 
Department of Dinbandhu Charitable

 Hospital Trust

Parallel Bar and Plinths

Long wave Diathermy & 
Pnuematic Compression device

Doctors explaining the
working of new machines
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Notice

Notice of Annual 
General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that Seventeenth Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) of the 
members will be held on 30th September, 2020, Wednesday at 1.00 p.m. at the registered 
office of Anupam Rasayan India Limited (the “Company”) i.e. 8110, Industrial Estate GIDC, 
Sachin, Surat- 394 230 at short notice in pursuance of the consent of members to hold such 
meeting at short notice to transact the following business: -

Ordinary Business:

1. Adoption of audited Stand-alone and Consolidated Financial Statements, Auditors’ 
Report thereon and Directors’ Report.

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 including statement of Audited Profit and 
Loss and Cash-flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020, Balance Sheet as at that 
date, Auditors’ Reports thereon and the Directors’ Report.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Mona Desai (DIN- 00038429), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To Appoint Statutory Auditors’ of the Company.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules framed thereunder and any amendments, modifications, re-enactments thereof for 
the time being in force and pursuant to receipt of the consent letter as to appointment, 
Rajendra & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 108355W) is 
hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors (the “Auditor”) of the Company to hold office 
for 5 years from 2020-21 to 2024-2025.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT remuneration of the Auditors of the Company be such as may 
be decided between the Auditors(s) and the Board of the Company or Committee thereof, 
and any of the directors of the Company are hereby authorised to do all such necessary 
acts, deeds and things as may be required for the aforesaid purpose.”
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Special Business:

4. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors as per Companies Act 2013.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force, the remuneration of INR 1.50 Lakhs (Rupees one lakh 
fifty thousand) p.a. plus GST and re-imbursement of out-of-pocket expenses for the  
financial year ending March 31, 2021, as recommended by the Audit Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company to be paid to Bhanwarlal Gurjar & 
Associates, Cost Accountants for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company 
be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution.”

Notes:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote only on poll instead of him and proxy need not be a member of company.

2. Proxy to be effective must be deposited at Registered Office of the Company at least 48 
hours before the time of meting.
 
3. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect 
of above resolution is enclosed herewith.
 
4. All documents referred to in accompanying notice are open for inspection at the registered 
office of the Company during office hours on all working days up to the date of the AGM.

Place: Surat
Date: September 20, 2020

By the Order of Board of Directors
   For Anupam Rasayan India Limited

Suchi Agarwal
               Company Secretary
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Special Business
Item No. 4

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed Cost 
Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 
ending March 31, 2020 and approved the payment of remuneration payable to them.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought by passing an Ordinary Resolutions set out 
at Item No. 4 of the notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 
for the financial year ending March 31, 2021.

The Board of Directors recommends the ordinary resolution as per item No. 4 of the 
accompanying notice for approval of the members of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, 
concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the said resolution as per item no. 4 of 
the Notice.

Statement to be annexed to the notice of Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held on 30.09.2020 pursuant to Section 102 

of the Companies Act, 2013: 

By the Order of Board of Directors
   For Anupam Rasayan India Limited

Suchi Agarwal
               Company Secretary

Place: Surat
Date: September 20, 2020
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Annexure to the Notice

Details of Director liable to retire by rotation and seeking re-appointment 
at the Annual General Meeting

DIN

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Qualifications

Expertise in specific functional areas

Memberships/Chairmanships of 
committees of other companies

Number of shares held in the Company

Remuneration drawn

Number of Meetings of the Board 
attended during the year 

Directorship held in other companies

Relationship with other directors, 
manager and key managerial personnel 
of the Company

00038429

October 12, 1975

September 30, 2003

B. Hsc.

Experience in administration

Rehash Industrial and Resins 
Chemicals Private Limited

4140625 shares

₹ 1,31,40,000/- p.a.

Except Mr. Anand Desai, none of the other 
directors, manager or key managerial 
personnel of the Company are related 
to Mrs. Mona Desai

Fifteen (15)

Chairperson of Audit Committee

Mona Desai, Vice-Chairperson and 
Whole-time Director

Name of Director
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I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
being held on Wednesday, September 30, 2020 at 1:00 p.m. at the registered office of the 
Company at 8110, GIDC Industrial Estate, Sachin, Surat-394230, Gujarat, India.

Attendance Slip

17th Annual General Meeting

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy/
 Authorised Representative

*Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 

Name ( In Block Letters)

Address

DP ID & Client ID

Shareholder/Proxy/Authorised
Representative
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Name of the Member(s)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Client Id

DP ID

1.Name:…………………………………………………… Address: …………………………………………………………………. 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

E-mail Id:…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

Signature: …………………………………………………………………., or failing him/her

2.Name:…………………………………………………… Address: ……………………………………………………….. 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...
Email Id:……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Signature: …………………………………………………………………., or failing him/her

3.Name:…………………………………………………… Address: ……………………………………………………….. 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...

Email Id:……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Signature: …………………………………………………………………., or failing him/her

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
 (Management and Admiration) Rules, 2014]

As my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 17th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held Wednesday, 30th September, 2020 at 1:00 p.m. at the 
registered office of the Company at 8110, GIDC Industrial Estate, Sachin, Surat-394230, Gujarat, 
India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Signed this ……….. day of ……………….. 2020 

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxyholder

Notes:

1. This form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the 
Company
.
2.The Proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of the Company not 
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the 
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any 
other person or shareholder.

5. Please put a ‘√’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you 
leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be 
entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

Sr. No. Resolution For Against

1.

2.

4.

3.

Adoption of audited Stand-alone and Consolidated 
Financial Statements, Auditors’ Report thereon and 
Directors’ Report.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Mona Desai 
(DIN- 00038429), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To Appoint Statutory Auditors’ of the Company.

Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors as per 
Companies Act 2013.
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To,
The Members,
Anupam Rasayan India limited (the “Company”)

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventeenth Annual Report on the business and 
operations of the Company together with Audited Financial Statements for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020. 

Board’s Report 2019-20

 1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2019-2020 2018-2019 2018-20192019-2020

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

Total Income

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation and Tax

Less: Depreciation

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Less: Provision for Income Tax

Less/(Add): Deferred tax Liability/(Assets)

Add/(Less): Share of net profit of associates

Profit/(Loss) after tax

Add: Balance B/F from the previous year

Add: Retained Earnings (EGGS Assets)

Less: Utilization of issue of bonus share

Less: Interim Dividend and Dividend 
Distribution tax

52887.97

1087.88

53975.85

10008.57

2871.24

7137.33

1283.57

554.52

-

5299.24

22062.32

5299.24

-

-

50149.70

1909.23

52058.93

8825.07

2251.15

6573.92

1199.30

351.29

-

5023.32

17039.00

5023.32

-

-

52887.97

1087.88

53975.85

10037.94

2871.24

7166.70

1291.57

554.52

-

5320.61

22063.75

5320.61

-

-

50149.70

1909.23

52058.93

8827.61

2252.81

6574.80

1199.50

351.86

(96.11)

4927.33

17136.42

4927.33

-

-

Balance Profit/ (Loss) C/F to the next year 27361.56           22062.32         27384.36         22063.75

 (in Lacs)
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During the year under review, on standalone basis, the Company has achieved operational revenue 
of INR 52887.97 Lacs compared to INR 50149.70 Lacs in previous year. The Company has earned 
net profit of INR 5299.24 Lacs compared to INR 5023.33 Lacs in previous year. 

During the year under review, on consolidated basis, the Company has earned net profit of INR 
5320.61 Lacs compared to INR 4927.33 Lacs in previous year.

Covid Impact:
In the last quarter of FY 2020, the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic developed rapidly globally 
and in India forcing governments to enforce lock-down. Measures taken to contain the spread of 
the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and closures of non-essential 
services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in lowered 
demand and productivity, operational and supply chain disruptions, potentially tightening credit 
markets and the health of their workforce. For the Company, the focus immediately shifted to 
ensuring the health and well-being of all employees, and on minimizing disruption to services for all 
our customers globally. 

In view of the outbreak of the pandemic, the Company undertook timely and essential measures to 
ensure the safety and well-being of all its employees at all its plant locations at Jhagadia (Bharuch) 
and Sachin (Surat) and institute sanitation rules in the workplace and establish risk mitigation 
programs for employees who may still need to work on-site. The Company observed all the 
government advisories and guidelines thoroughly and in good faith. 

Despite of uncertainties due to global pandemic, the Company has made noteworthy capital 
investments adding different capabilities in the Company's manufacturing activities. The Company 
is using measures to control the operational and finance cost and is making continuous efforts in 
the areas of resource optimization, enhancement of operational efficiency, quality of products and 
research and development to sustain and grow in the competitive market. With demand for the 
products planned by the Company for manufacture in the new plants under development, along 
with the  newly started production, we anticipate higher turnover with revenues in the upwards 
trajectory. Your Company is focused on the sales growth with particular attention to exports. The 
Company's growth prospects are strong.

During the year under review, the Company has earned profits. With the growth objective and to 
strengthen long term financial position of the Company, your directors decided to retain the profit 
and hence do not recommend any dividend for the year.

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the financial year.

 2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK:

3.DIVIDEND:

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
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The extract of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made thereunder in the prescribed Form MGT-9 for the Financial Year 2019-20 has been 
annexed to this report as Annexure-I

The Board of Directors of the Company conducted 15(Fifteen) Board meetings during the year 
2019-2020. The maximum gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the 
Companies Act, 2013.

5. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

6. BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors of the Company conducted 6 (six) Audit Committee meetings, 3 (three) CSR 
Committee meetings and 2 (two) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings during the 
year 2019-2020. 

7. COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

May 09, 2019

June 10, 2019

June 29, 2019

August 24, 2019

September 06, 2019

September 30, 2019

October 21, 2019

October 24, 2019

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

November 28, 2019

December 20, 2019

January 20, 2020

January 25, 2020

February 05, 2020

February 27, 2020

March 16, 2020

Sr. No.           Date of Board Meeting            Sr. No.             Date of Board Meeting

1.

2.

3.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

1.

2.

Sr. 
No.

Sr. 
No.

Sr. 
No.

September 21, 2019

January 11, 2020

March 14, 2020

June 1, 2019

August 14, 2019

August 30, 2019

December 11, 2019

January 11, 2020

March 13, 2020

August 30, 2019

March 13, 2020

Date of Audit 
Committee Meeting

Date of  Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee Meeting

Date of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee Meeting
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Directors retire by rotation:

As per provisions of the Articles of Association, Mrs. Mona Desai (DIN: 00038429), director of the 
Company retires by rotation in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer 
herself for reappointment.

9. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A.Statutory Auditors:

The Company auditors, RAJENDRA & CO., Chartered Accountants, 1311, Dalamal Tower, 211, 
Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400 021, Maharashtra, India, FRN: 108355W retires at the conclusion of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and had confirmed their eligibility for the reappointment and 
willingness to accept office, if reappointed.

The Auditors’ Report to the members for the year under review does not contain any qualification.

B.Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M.D. BAID & 
ASSOCIATES, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit for FY 
2019-20 of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “Annexure -II”.

10. AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Companies Act, 2013 
shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 along with its statutory amendments, modifications or 
enactments, re-enactments and any rules framed thereunder from time to time, hereinafter to be 
referred to as the “Act”) the directors of the Company confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;

2. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the company for that 
period.

3. The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4. The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern basis’ and

5. The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all the 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

8. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:



28

C. Cost Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 6(2) of the 
Companies (Cost records and Audit Rules) 2O14, the Company has appointed Bhanwarlal Gurjar & 
Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No. 101540) to conduct the audit of the cost records 
maintained by the Company pertaining to the products manufactured by it for financial year 
2019-20.

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the cost auditor is 
required to be placed before the members in a general meeting for their ratification. Accordingly, a 
Resolution seeking member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to Bhanwarlal Gurjar & Co., 
Cost Auditor is included at Item No. 4 of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

Maintenance Of Cost Records:

The Directors of the Company to the best of their knowledge and belief state that the Company has 
maintained adequate Cost records as required to be maintained by the Company under the 
provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act,  2013 read with the relevant Rules 
framed thereunder.

Auditors Remark

The observations made in the Secretarial Auditor’s Report are as hereunder: 

1. The Board of Director comprises of 4 directors (2 Promoter Directors and 2 Professional 
Directors). Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that at least one third of the total 
number of directors of the Company shall be independent director. Thus the Company does not 
have the required number of independent directors on its board.

2. The Audit Committee comprises of three directors (two executive directors and one non- 
executive director). Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that majority of directors of 
Audit Committee should be independent. The Company does not have the required number of 
independent directors on its Audit Committee. 

3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three directors (two executive 
directors and one non-executive director) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company. 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that majority of directors of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee should be independent. The Company does not have the required 
number of independent directors on its Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

4. The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of 3 directors (two executive 
directors and one non-executive director). Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that 
CSR Committee shall consist of three or more directors out of which at least one director shall be 
an independent director. The Company does not have the required number of independent 
directors on its CSR Committee.

The Board’s explanation on observation made in Secretarial Audit Report in 1 to 4 above:
The Company is in process of selection of suitable candidates for appointment as Independent 
Directors. The Company will reconstitute Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and CSR Committee on appointment of Independent Director.
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The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Jainam Intermediates Private Limited and a step 
down subsidiary i.e.  Radha Murari Petrofills Private Limited as on March 31, 2020. Statement 
pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Subsidiary Companies are 
annexed herewith as Annexure–III. 

Further, during the year, the Company has sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement in the nature of 
amalgamation of step-down subsidiary of the company with the wholly owned subsidiary under 
section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES:

A. Investments Made: The Company has made the investments in the body corporate as per the 
Note Number 4 of the Audited Financial Statements for FY 2019-20.
B. Loans and Advances: The Company has given loans and advances as per the Note Number 11 of 
the Audited Financial Statements for FY 2019-20.

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS U/S 186:

The disclosure of related party transactions is attached in Form AOC-2 as Annexure-IV

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with Rule 8(3) of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith as Annexure-V.

14. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUT GO:  

Your Company has always laid emphasis on progress with social commitment. We believe strongly 
in our core values of empowerment and betterment of not only the employees but also our 
communities. Following this principle, the Company had laid the foundation of a comprehensive 
approach towards promoting and facilitating various aspects of our surrounding communities.

The Board has approved a policy for Corporate Social Responsibility and same has been uploaded 
on the website i.e. https://www.anupamrasayan.com/corporate-social-responsibility/ as required 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to demonstrate the responsibilities towards 
Social upliftment in structured way, the Company has formed a Policy to conduct the task under 
CSR, during the year.

The report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities along with Annexure as per Rule 8 
of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as a separate 
Annexure-VI.

15. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY 
ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:
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Risk management forms an integral part of the management’s focus. In the last month of FY 
2019-20, the world was disrupted when the World Health Organization (WHO) declared Covid-19 
as a ‘pandemic’. Your Company is working on a resilient and adaptive risk management strategy.

An effective risk management framework is put in place in the Company in order to analyze, control 
or mitigate risk. The framework provides an integrated approach for managing the risks in various 
aspects of the business.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has developed and maintained adequate measures for internal financial control for 
the year ended March 31, 2020. The Company has appointed the internal auditor to conduct the 
quarterly audit of the accounting records, books of accounts, financial data, taxation data, stock 
audit, MCA filings, and compliances under different laws and present his report to the audit 
committee of the Company.

17. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms to the best of their knowledge and belief that the 
Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India as amended from time to time and made applicable by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs during the financial year under review.

18. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

A.The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2020 was INR 50,00,01,000/-

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

b . SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

c. BONUS SHARES
The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review

d. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the year under 
review.

e. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER
The Company not made initial public offer of its shares during the year under review.

B. The paid up Preference Share Capital as on March 31, 2020 was INR 28,12,49,000/-
During the year, the Company has allotted 27,98,508 and 6,99,626 Compulsorily Convertible 
Preference Shares ("CCPS") on September 30, 2019 and October 24, 2019 respectively in 
dematerialized form on preferential allotment basis.

19. SHARE CAPITAL:
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The details relating to the deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act are as under:

A. Accepted during the year:
Your company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 2(31) read with Section 
73 of the Act, and as such no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the date of the 
Balance Sheet.

B. Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year: None

C. Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon 
during the year: None

D. The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the 
Act: None

21. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The appointments, removal and remuneration of the directors is subject to the recommendations 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") and in accordance to the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder from time to time ("Act"). The Company’s 
policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors is available on website of the Company at 
https://www.anupamrasayan.com/nomination-and-remuneration-policy/

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following directors:

1. Mr. Anand Desai, Chairperson 
2. Mrs. Mona Desai, Member
3. Mr. Milan Thakkar, Member
4. Mr. Afzal Malkani, Member

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee include the following:

   Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
a director and recommend to the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Board of 
Directors”) a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees (“Remuneration Policy”); 

   Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board; 

   Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

22. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted on private placement basis, 
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) aggregating INR 1600.00 Lacs (160 Debentures at INR 
10,00,000/- each) in dematerialized form to Avendus Structured Credit Fund-I.

20. DEBT STRUCTURE:
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Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and carrying out evaluation of every director’s performance 
(including independent director);

Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 

Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management; 

Carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable 
law, as and when amended from time to time.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the Remuneration Policy, 
should ensure that:

The level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and

Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

The Audit Committee consists of the following members:

1. Mrs. Mona Desai, Chairperson
2. Mr. Anand Desai, Member
3. Mr. Milan Thakkar, Member

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and overseas through the committee, the genuine 
concerns expressed by any of the employees and other directors. The Company has also provided 
adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and directors who express their concerns. 
The Company has also provided direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee on reporting 
issues concerning the interests of co employees and the Company. The Vigil Policy/whistle blower 
Policy of the Company is available at the website of the Company at 
https://www.anupamrasayan.com/vigil-or-whistle-blower-mechanism-policy/

23. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING
 VIGIL MECHANISM:

No significant and material order has been issued by any regulator/court/other authority which 
impacts the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

24. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS:

a.

b.

c.
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No change in the nature of business during the year under review.

25. CHANGE(S) IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

The Board of Directors (“Board”) upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of Board of the Company, its 
Committees and the individual Board members. 
The performance of the Board and its committees were evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs 
from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as effectiveness of board processes, information 
and functioning, etc.
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of 
individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the 
board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

26. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, ITS COMMITTEES AND 
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:

Details of employee as stipulated under provisions of rule 5(2) of chapter XIII, the companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached and marked as 
Annexure – VII.

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES / MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

There have been no other material changes in the Company from the end of the financial year till 
the date of this report.

28. MATERIAL CHANGES:

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirement of the 
Sexual Harassment of woman at Workplace (Prevention Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
 
The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 in compliance with the 
MCA notification of 31.07.2018.

The following is the summary of the complaints received and disposed of during the financial year 
2019-2020:
a) No. of complaints received: NIL
b) No. of complaints disposed off: NIL

29. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013:
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Employee relations throughout the Company were harmonious. The Board wishes to place on 
record its sincere appreciation of the devoted efforts of all employees in advancing the Company’s 
vision and strategy to deliver good performance.

30. EMPLOYEE RELATIONS:

The directors express their gratitude to the Company’s stakeholders and employees of the 
Company. They also take the opportunity to thank the Company’s valued customers, bankers, 
financial institutions, suppliers and the shareholders who have extended their support to the 
Company.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  

For and on behalf of the Board

Anand Desai                     Mona Desai
Managing Director            Whole-Time Director
DIN:00038442                      DIN:00038429

Place: Surat   
Date:  September 20, 2020
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Annexure to Board’s Report 
Annexure- 1

FORM MGT-9
(Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020)
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)IV
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)IV
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)IV
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(Preference Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Preference Shares)IV
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*Note: The aggregate shareholding on fully diluted basis of Kiran Pallavi Investments LLC in the 
company is increased from 33% to 36%. 
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(Preference Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Preference Shares)
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(Preference Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Preference Shares)IV
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INDEBTEDNESS
(Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/ accrued ut not due for payment)V

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELVI
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For and on behalf of the Board

Anand Desai                      Mona Desai
Managing Director            Whole-Time Director
DIN:00038442                      DIN:00038429

Place: Surat   
Date:  September 20, 2020

PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENTS/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCESVII
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
Anupam Rasayan India Limited
CIN: U24231GJ2003PLC042988
8110, GIDC Industrial Estate,
Sachin, District – Surat,
Surat

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Anupam Rasayan India 
Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 
according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

3.The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4.Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;
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5.The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008;  (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009;(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period), and 

h.The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
1998(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period)

We have relied on the representation made by the company and its officers for systems and 
mechanism formed by the company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and 
Regulation to the company.

We are of the opinion that the management has complied with the following laws 
specifically applicable to the company:
i. Factories Act, 1948
ii. Industrial Dispute Act, 1947
iii. Bonus Act, 1965
iv. Payment of Wages Act
v. Provident Fund Act
vi. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
vii. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review, the company has complied with the provisions of the 
Act,Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the 
following observations:
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1. The Board of Director comprises of 4 directors (2 Promoter Directors and 2 Professional 
Director). Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 requires that at least one third of the total 
number of directors of company shall be independent director. Thus the Company does not 
have the required number of independent directors on its board.

2. The Audit Committee comprises of three directors (two executive directors and one non 
executive director). Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that majority of 
directors of Audit Committee should be independent. The Company does not have the 
required number of independent directors on its Audit Committee. 

3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three directors (two 
executive directors and one non-executive director) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of 
the Company. Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that majority of directors 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee should be independent. The Company does 
not have the required number of independent directors on its Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. 

4. The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of 3 directors (two 
executive directors and one non-executive director). Section 135 of Companies Act, 2015 
requires that CSR Committee shall consist of three or more directors out of which at least 
one director shall be an independent director. The Company does not have the required 
number of independent directors on its CSR Committee.

We further report that The Company has not appointed Independent Director and to that 
extent the Board of the company is not duly constituted. There are no changes in 
composition of Board of Director of the Company during the period under review. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events / actions 
having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For M. D. Baid & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Mohan Baid
Partner

ACS No. 3598/C P No.: 3873
UDIN: A003598B000666271

Place: Surat
Date: September 4, 2020

This Report is to be read with our letter annexed as Appendix –A, which forms integral part of this report.
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Appendix-A

To, 
The Members, 
Anupam Rasayan India Limited
CIN: U24231GJ2003PLC042988
8110, GIDC Industrial Estate,
Sachin, District – Surat,
Surat

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The responsibility of maintaining Secretarial record is of the management and based on 
our audit, we have expressed our opinion on these records.

2. We are of the opinion that the audit practices and process adopted to obtain assurance 
about the correctness of the Secretarial records were reasonable for verification on test 
check basis.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books 
of accounts of the Company.

4. The management is responsible for compliances with corporate and other applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, standard etc. our examinations was limited to the verifications of 
procedures on test basis and wherever required. We have obtained the Management 
representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations etc.

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company.

For M. D. Baid & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Mohan Baid
Partner

ACS No. 3598/C P No.: 3873
Place: Surat
Date: September 4, 2020
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Form No. AOC-1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

Subsidiaries/Associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Account) Rules, 2014)

Annexure-II

Part “A” : Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. In lacs)
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Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

For Rajendra & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 108355W

Akshay R. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 103316
UDIN: 20103316AAAADQ6412

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 12, 2020

For Anupam Rasayan India Limited

Director 

Place: Surat
Date: September 20, 2020

DIN: 00038429DIN: 00038442

CFO Company Secretary

Director
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Annexure-IV

For Anupam Rasayan India Limited

Anand Desai                     Mona Desai
Managing Director            Whole-Time Director
DIN:00038442                      DIN:00038429

Date:  September 20, 2020 Date:  September 20, 2020
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Annexure-V

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NIL
2. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy: NIL
3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL
4. The total energy consumption of company for the year 2019-2020 is as hereunder:

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

1.  The efforts made towards technology absorption: Nil
2.  The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 
product development or   import substitutions: Nil
3. In case of imported technology: Nil
Expenditure of R&D: Amount (In Lacs)
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUT GO:

The foreign exchange earnings*:  INR 35500.16 Lacs (PY INR 29840.38 Lacs)
The foreign exchange outgo**:- 
 
- CIF of Import of materials:  INR 7644.90 Lacs (PY INR 6922.99 Lacs)
- Import of services:  INR 351.17 Lacs (PY INR 415.83 Lacs)

Foreign exchange outgo- ECB#:-

- ECB Payments – Interest:  INR 1123.90 Lacs (PY INR 1124.19 Lacs)
- ECB Payments – Repayments:  INR 2004.69 Lacs (PY INR 2451.49 Lacs) 
(*FOB Value of exports; ** CIF Import of materials & import of services; 
#ECB repayments include interest & principle)
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Annexure-VI
Reporting of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of the projects or 
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web link to the CSR policy and 
projects or programs: 
-CSR policy of the Company is available at web link: 
https://www.anupamrasayan.com/corporate-social-responsibility/
-Projects to be undertaken are available at web link:  
https://www.anupamrasayan.com/csr-initiatives/

2. The composition of CSR Committee:
a, Mr. Anand Desai, Chairpersonb. 
b. Mrs. Mona Desai, Member
c. Mr. Milan Thakkar, Member

3. Average net profit of the Company for last 3 years:  INR 5297.50 Lacs

4. *Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 5 above): INR 105.95 Lacs

5. *Details of CSR spent during the financial year

a. Total amount spent for the financial year:  INR 59.72 Lacs

b. Amount unspent, if any: INR 46.23 Lacs

c. Reason for non-spending: The CSR activities carried/to be carried out by the Company is 
driven by the expertise of the Management. The Company has been voluntarily carrying out 
CSR activities with Giants Group of Sachin Vibhag and Rotary Eye Institute from FY 
2016-17 onwards. Activities in the local area(s) of operation of the Company are preferred, 
reflecting the Company’s philosophy to improve the quality of life and benefiting the larger 
target beneficiaries. The actual spend of the Company on the CSR for this financial year was 
less than 2% of the average net profit for the last three years as the Company did not come 
across any project, which reflected the above approach and hence partial amount 
prescribed towards CSR could be made during FY2019-20. Company endeavors to 
increase the expenses in the coming years as more of its CSR projects are implemented.

d. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: 
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6. The Company’s CSR Committee shall identify, implement and undertake CSR activities 
and co-ordinate CSR Projects respectively in accordance to the Company’s CSR Policy. The 
committee shall monitor the progress and report the utilization of funds.

Amount (in Lacs)

Sector in which the
Project is covered

CSR project/
activity identi�ed

S.N.
Projects/programs
1) Local area or
2) State & District
where undertaken

Amount outlay 
(budget) project 
wise

Cumulative 
expenditure up
to reporting 
period

Amount spent
on Project
1) Direct exp. 
2) Overheads

Amount spent: 
Direct or through
Implementing 
Agency *

1.

2.

3.

TOTAL 112.00

50.00 25.00

12.00 12.00

50.00 22.72 22.72

34.72

59.72 59.72

59.72

Upgradation of 
physiotherapy 
dept of the 
hospital

Promoting health 
care including 
preventive health 
care

Sachin, Surat 
(Gujarat)

Surat (Gujarat)

Sinor, Vadodara
(Gujarat)

Environmental 
sustainability, 
ecological balance,

and fauna, animal 
welfare, 
agroforestry, 
conservation of 
natural resources

Promoting education,
including special 
education among 
children.

Environment 
conservation and

and fauna

Skill Angel 
Cognitive 
Learning 
Programme 
Project

Dinbandhu 
Charitable 
Hospital, Kholwad

Prayash Team 
Environment 
Charitable Trust, 
Surat

Shakti Krupa 
Charitable Trust, 
MotaFofalia 
(Vadodara)

Anand Desai                              Mona Desai
Managing Director
& Chairperson - 
CSR Committee
DIN:00038442                               DIN:00038429

Place: Surat   
Date:  September 20, 2020

Whole-Time Director
& member - CSR 
Committee

56



DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT 
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Annexure-VII
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For and on behalf of the Board

Anand Desai                     Mona Desai
Managing Director            Whole-Time Director
DIN:00038442                      DIN:00038429
Place: Surat   
Date:  September 20, 2020
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We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Anupam Rasayan 
India Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (herein after 
referred to as the “Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity Standards with Indian Accounting prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2020 and its profit including other comprehensive income, its 
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Independent Auditors’ 
Report (Standalone)

To the Board of Directors of Anupam Rasayan India Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We conducted audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Basis of Opinion
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the Ind AS and accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the respective Companies and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of other 
information. The other information comprise the information included in the Annual report, 
but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our 
audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report
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and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls systems in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income and Statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard financial statements comply 
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Branch and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
"Annexure B".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position; 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the company has paid 
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of the limits 
laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

For Rajendra & Co
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No. 108355W

Akshay R. Shah
Partner 
Membership No. 103316
UDIN 20103316AAAADQ6412

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 12, 2020
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the Members of Anupam Rasayan India Limited of even date)
 
(i)  ( a ) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixsed assets on the basis of available information. 

( b ) As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management 
in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size 
of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
physical verification.

( c ) The title deeds of immovable properties recorded as fixed assets in the books of account 
of the company are in the name of the company. 

(ii) Based on records verified and information and explanation given by the management, 
physical verification of inventories is conducted by the management at reasonable intervals 
and no physical discrepancies were noticed during the year. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or 
other parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act and therefore 
clauses 3 (iii) (a), (b) & (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or 
made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act or any other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act and Rules framed there under. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014. Consequently, the clause 3 (v) is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) In our opinion the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central 
Government sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act and such accounts and records have 
been so made and maintained by the company. We have however, not made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or 
complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

( a ) According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess, and other material 
statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. 

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

6517th Annual Report 2019-20



According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2020 for a period of 
more than six months from the date of becoming payable. 

( b ) According to the records made available to us and the information and explanations 
given by the management, there are no disputed statutory dues on account of income tax or 
sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax that have not 
been deposited on account of matters pending before appropriate authorities. 

(viii) According to the records made available to us and, the information and explanations 
given by the management and based on our audit procedures, we are of the opinion that the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank, and 
government or debenture holders. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the money 
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and 
term loans, by the company during the year have been applied for the purposes for which 
they were obtained. 

(x) In our opinion, based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting 
the true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per information and 
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to verification of the records and, information and explanations provided by 
the management, the management remuneration paid or provided by the company is in 
compliance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under, the 
provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all 
transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act 
and details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the records verified and, information and explanations provided to us, 
the company has complied with the provisions of section 42 of the Act, while making 
preferential allotment or private placement of compulsory convertible preference shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and the funds so raised are applied 
for the purpose for which those were raised. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 
year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the directors or 
persons connected with him and covered under section 192 of the Act and hence reporting 
under clause (xv) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanation provided by the management, the 
company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934.

For Rajendra & Co
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No. 108355W

Akshay R. Shah
Partner 
Membership No. 103316
UDIN 20103316AAAADQ6412

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 12, 2020
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We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements of Anupam Rasayan Public Limited (the “Company”) as at March 31, 2020 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company as 
for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial 
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls With reference to standalone financial statements 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
of our report of even date)

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls With 
reference to standalone financial statements (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards on auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with

Auditor’s Responsibility

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANICAL STATEMENTS OF THE ANUPAM RASAYAN 
INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)
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ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
with reference to standalone financial statements.

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of  Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

For Rajendra & Co
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No. 108355W

Akshay R. Shah
Partner 
Membership No. 103316
UDIN 20103316AAAADQ6412

Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 12, 2020
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Balance Sheet (Standalone)
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai



Statement of Profit 
& loss (Standalone)

As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai
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Cash Flow Statement
(Standalone)
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai
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Statement of Changes In
Equity (Standalone) 
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                    

           

                                                          

    

                                         Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai
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Notes to Standalone
Financial Statement
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NOTE 1 TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Anupam Rasayan India Limited (“the Company”) is a Public Company incorporated and 
domiciled in India, having its registered office in Surat, Gujarat, India. The Company is 
engaged in manufacturing of chemicals, which are sold in local market as well as exported to 
other countries.

The financial statements have been prepared for the year ended on March 31, 2020.

1. Company Overview

(A) Statement of compliance

(i) Basis of preparation of financial statements
Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company had adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption has been 
carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards, with April 1, 2017 as the transition date. The transition was carried out from 
Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Act, which was the previous GAAP. 

 The Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been prepared and 
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure 
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, 
as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of 
the financial statements.

2. Significant accounting policies

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year 
ending March 31, 2020 are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
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(ii) Investments in subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried in these financial statements at 
historical cost, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for 
sale, in which case, it is accounted for as Non-Current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations.

Where the carrying amount of investment is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is 
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(iii) Property, Plant And Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

All other items of Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition net of any 
trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently 
recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset 
ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any 
expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and 
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred. Major shutdown and 
overhaul expenditure is capitalized as the activities undertaken improves the economic 
benefits expected to arise from the asset. It includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy based on Ind 
AS 23 – Borrowing costs. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of PPE 
when completed and ready for intended use. Assets in the course of construction are 
capitalized in the assets under construction account. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

With effect from 1st April, 2019, Ind AS 116 – “Leases” (Ind AS 116) supersedes Ind AS 17 
– “Leases”. The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 using the prospective approach. The 
application of Ind AS 116 has resulted into recognition of ‘Right-of-Use’ asset with a 
corresponding Lease Liability in the Balance Sheet. 

The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees ( ), which is also its 
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (  00,000), except when 
otherwise indicated.
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At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of 
construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment 
and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any 
obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalized where the asset is available for use but 
incapable of operating at normal levels until a year of commissioning has been completed. 
Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalized. Property, plant 
and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative 
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant 
and equipment as recognized in the financial statements on transition to Ind AS, measured 
as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and significant value and subsequent 
expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment arising on account of capital improvement 
or other factors are accounted for as separate components only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as 
a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent expenditure and componentization

Decommissioning cost includes cost of restoration. Provision for decommissioning costs is 
recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation to plug and abandon a 
well, dismantle and remove a facility or an item of Property, Plant and Equipment and to 
restore the site on which it is located. The full eventual estimated provision towards costs 
relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring sites and other facilities are recognized in 
respective assets when the site is complete / facilities or Property, Plant and Equipment are 
installed. The amount recognized is the present value of the estimated future expenditure 
determined using existing technology at current prices and escalated using appropriate 
inflation rate till the expected date of decommissioning and discounted up to the reporting 
date using the appropriate risk-free discount rate. An amount equivalent to the 
decommissioning provision is recognized along with the cost of exploratory well or 
Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Decommissioning costs 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, 
less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of 
assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual 
values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in

Depreciation and Useful life
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Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following categories of assets, 
in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating 
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, 
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the 
end of each reporting period and if the expectations differ from the previous estimates, the 
change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a retrospective or 
prospective basis, whichever is nearly possible for the Company.

In the current financial year, the estimate of life of plant and machinery is revised from 20 
years to 22 years evidenced through technical evaluation certificate provided by the 
management of the Company. The same is accounted for on a prospective basis.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the 
asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is 
no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Asset Class Useful Life

Building

Plant and machinery

Office equipment

Computer equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Electric Installations

Laboratory Equipment

10-30 Years

8-30 Years

3-20 Years

3-5 Years

10-20 Years

8-10 Years

10-30 Years

10-20 Years
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(iv) Intangible Assests

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are recognized only on reasonable 
certainty and after completion of all activities related to the asset. 

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are 
determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and are recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
following period:

(v) Impairment of assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable 
value. At each year end, assets are broadly evaluated for impairment. Provision for 
impairment of asset is made only if the recoverable amount of the asset goes below the 
carrying amount of the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless 
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit 
(CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the 
assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset.  An impairment loss is 
reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of Asset

Asset Class
Useful Life

Intangible assets 3- 10  Years
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to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the    
index or rate as at the commencement date; 

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to 
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably 
certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

(vi) Leases

The company has applied Ind AS 116 for entering into leases in the current financial year 
and hence there was no need of restatement required to be done for the previous financial 
years.

As a lessee, the company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises 
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to 
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on 
which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or 
the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined 
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is 
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are 
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease 
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: –
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(vii) Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes 
party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, 
financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction 
values and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such financial assets 
or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized 
immediately in Profit or Loss.

Offset 

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and presented on net basis in the balance 
sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts 
and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether 
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to 
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment 
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in 
the statement of financial position. 

The company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short 
term leases of real estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The company 
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
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Financial asset carried at amortized cost.
Financial asset carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial asset carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial asset carried at amortized cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any):

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when asset is held within a business model, 
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of 
the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest.  Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized costs using Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.  Cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans 
and other financial asset of the company are covered under this category.

Under the EIR method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial recognition 
value using EIR. The cumulative amortization using the EIR method of the difference between 
the initial recognition amount and maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net 
of principal repayments, if any) of the financial asset over the relevant period of the financial 
asset to arrive at amortized cost at each reporting date.  The corresponding effect of the 
amortization under EIR method is recognized as interest income over the relevant period of the 
financial asset.  The same is included under “other income” in the statement of profit or loss.  The 
amortized cost of the financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

ii. Financial asset carried at FVTOCI:

Financial asset under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value, when asset is held with a business model whose objective is to hold asset for both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.  Fair value movements are 
recognized in the other comprehensive income.

iii. Financial asset carried at FVTPL:

Financial asset under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

(A) Financial Assets:

a. Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the company classifies financial asset in following broad categories:

b. Derecognition:

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has
substantially transferred all the risk and reward of the ownership of the financial asset.
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c. Impairment of financial asset: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for 
evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through 
profit and loss (FVTPL).

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all 
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which 
results from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected 
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company 
uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade 
receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes 
in the forward looking estimates are analyzed. 

For other assets, the Company uses 12-month ECL to provide for impairment loss where 
there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full 
lifetime ECL is used. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as 
income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

(B) Financial Liablities:

a. Subsequent measurement:

b. Derecognition of financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 

The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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c. Derivative financial instrument:

Company uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, currency swaps, forward 
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate. At the 
inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge 
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective 
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at 
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are also subsequently measured 
at fair value. 

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken 
directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedge which is 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged 
item affects profit or loss or is treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently 
results in the recognition of a Non-Financial Assets or Non-Financial liability. Hedges that meet the 
criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

A. Cash Flow Hedge;
The Company designates derivative contracts or non-derivative Financial Assets/ Liabilities as hedging 
instruments to mitigate the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign 
exchange exposure on highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability or 
forecast cash transactions. 

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in 
the fair value of the derivative is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve being part of Other 
Comprehensive Income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging 
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument recognised in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in 
cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the 
occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, 
then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

B. Fair Value Hedge;
The Company designates derivative contracts or non-derivative Financial Assets/Liabilities as hedging 
instruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and 
hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to 
the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to 
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of maturity..
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(viii) Trade Recivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

(ix) Inventories

Inventories comprise of Raw and packing materials, Work-in-progress, Finished goods, and 
Stores and spares. 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realizable value. Cost is determined 
on weighted average basis. Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods to their present 
location and condition. The cost of Work-in-progress and Finished goods comprises of 
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(x) Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefit:

Employee benefits such as salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, expected 
cost of bonus, ex-gratia and performance-linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve 
months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and are 
expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(b) Post-employment benefits:

i) Defined contribution plans:
The contribution paid/payable under defined contribution plan is recognized during the 
period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Defined benefit plans:
The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity 
plans is the present value of the defined obligation at the end of the reporting period less 
the fair value of plan assets. The defined obligation is calculated annually based on actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a 
discount rate based on the market yield on government securities of a maturity period 
equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations at the 
Balance Sheet date.
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Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset) and 
any change in the effect of asset ceiling (if applicable) is recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income and is reflected in Retained earnings and the same is not eligible to 
be reclassified to Profit or Loss.

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses 
on settlements are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefits 
expense. Interest cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under finance cost. Gains or losses on settlement of any 
defined benefit plan are recognized when the settlement occurs. Past service cost is 
recognized as expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and when the 
company recognizes related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation 
under the defined benefit plans to recognize the obligation on a net basis.

Leave Salary is considered as short-term benefits and the same is accrued and paid within 
the working cycle of the business. 

(xi) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money 
is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. 
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is 
recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of, a present obligation arising from past events, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; 
and a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. 

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation 
under the contract is recognized and measured as a provision.
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(xii) Revenue Recognition

The Company has adopted Ind-AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” effective 
from April 01, 2018.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the Company transfers control of the 
product. Control of the product transfers upon shipment of the product to the customer or 
when the product is made available to the customer, provided transfer of title to the 
customer occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or 
future obligations with respect to the product shipped. Amounts disclosed as revenue are 
net off returns, trade allowances, rebates and indirect taxes.

Other income: 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at 
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is 
established.

Government grants, which are revenue in nature and are towards compensation for the 
qualifying costs, incurred by the Company, are recognized as other income in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. Government grant 
receivable in the form duty credit script is recognized as other income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which the application is made to the government authorities 
and to the extent there is no uncertainty towards its receipt.

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises 
and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably.

(xiii) Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional currency and presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupee.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recorded on 
initial recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet 
date, foreign currency monetary items are reported at the closing spot rate. Non-monetary 
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.
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(xiv) Exceptional Items

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in 
order to improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an 
exceptional item and disclosed as such in the financial statements.

(xv) Taxes on Income

The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income. In which case, the tax is also recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income. 

Current Tax
Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax 
credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based 
on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or 
substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the 
extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of 
monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for:

(a) exchange gains or losses on foreign currency borrowings taken which are related to the 
acquisition or construction of  qualifying assets are adjusted in the carrying cost of such 
assets.

(b) exchange differences on derivatives transactions entered into in order to hedge foreign 
currency risks associated with underlying assets/liabilities which are classified as cash flow 
hedges. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in 
the cash flow hedging reserve being part of Other Comprehensive Income. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(xvi) Cash And Bank Balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked 
balances with banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short 
term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, 
are not included as part of cash and bank balances.

(xvii) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method where by the profit before tax is 
adjusted for the effect of the transaction of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of 
past and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 
and financing activities of the company are segregated.

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand 
deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are 
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the 
head “capital gains” are recognized and carried forward to the extent of available taxable 
temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of reporting 
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Considering 
intensive capital investment since last several years and based on the estimate of future 
forecasts of capital investments, the Company is expected to have higher deductions of 
depreciation as per Income Tax as compared to depreciation as per Books of Accounts. 
Deferred Tax is effectively considered not to be neutralized in foreseeable future and 
hence as per the policy of the Company, deferred tax is recognised at 75% of its effective 
value.

Transaction or event which is recognized outside Profit or Loss, either in Other 
Comprehensive Income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the 
liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there 
is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and 
where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax asset and the deferred tax liabilities 
relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.
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(xviii) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, general or specific, that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as part of such assets. A qualifying asset is 
one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company determines 
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual borrowing costs 
incurred on that borrowing during the year less any interest income earned on temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the 
extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 
asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the funds for obtaining a 
qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are determined by applying a 
capitalizations rate to the expenditures on that asset. 

Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to 
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost.

(xix) Securities Premium

Securities premium include, the difference between the face value of the equity shares and 
the consideration received in respect of shares issued. The issue expenses of securities 
which qualify as equity instruments are written off against securities premium.

(xx) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying 
amount is intended to be recovered principally through a sale (rather than through 
continuing use) when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its 
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset 
(or disposal group) and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for recognition 
as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at lower of 
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(xxi) Operating cycle for current and non-current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on 
current/non-current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
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(xxii) Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the  weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for bonus element in 
equity share. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic 
earnings per share to take into account the conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the 
period unless issued at a later date.

(xxii) Key sources of estimation

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires  the 
management of the Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial 
statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & 
intangible assets, allowance for expected credit loss, future obligations in respect of 
retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual 
results and estimates is recognized in the period in which the results are known.

It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the date of reporting period; or
Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least 12 months after reporting period.

It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the date of reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting period current liabilities include the current portion of 
long-term financial liabilities.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets 
are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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i) Segment reporting

Revenue and Geographical Segments are identified based on the stratification of the risk 
and returns. The company operates only in the one revenue segment. i.e. Manufacturing of 
industrial chemicals. 

ii) Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments include the 
value of the contracts for the acquisition of the assets net of advances.
  
iii) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible temporary differences and 
unused tax losses for which there is probability of utilisation against the future taxable 
profit. The Company uses judgement to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and business 
developments.

iv) Global Health Pandemic on COVID-19

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing 
significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. In many countries, businesses 
are being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods of time. 
Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social 
distancing, and closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to 
businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown.  

In assessing the recoverability of Company’s assets such as Investments, Loans, intangible 
assets, Goodwill, Trade receivable etc. the Company has considered internal and external 
information. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used basis 
the internal and external information/indicators of future economic conditions, the 
Company expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets.

v) Standards issued but not effective 

The amendments are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
April 2020.

a. Issue of Ind AS 117 – Insurance Contracts 

Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. It establishes the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the 
scope of the standard. Under the Ind AS 117 model, insurance contract liabilities will be 
calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with a provision for risk. 
Application of this standard is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s 
financial statements. 
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b. Amendments to existing Standards 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out amendments of the following accounting 
standards:

Ind AS 103 – Business Combination 2
Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes 
in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
Ind AS 40 – Investment Property 

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the new amendments issued but 
not yet effective.
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"NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR  ENDED MARCH 31, 2020"

2     Property, Plant and Equipment

2     Intangible assets and Capital Work in Progress
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3   Rights-of-Use Assets
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4   Non-Current Assets: Financial Assets - Investments

5   Non-Current Assets: Other Financial Assets

in



98

6   Non-Current Assets: Other Non-Current Assets

7   Cureent Assets: Inventories

8   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

9   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

10   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances
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14     Share Capital

11   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Loans

12   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Others

13   Other Current Assets



14     Other Equity
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15   Non-Current Liabili�es: Financial liabili�es - Borrowings
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16   Non-Current Liabili�es: Other financial liabili�es

17   Current Liabili�es: Financial liabili�es - Borrowings
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18   Current Liabili�es: Financial liabili�es - Trade Payables

19  Current Liabili�es:  Fnancial liabili�es - Current Maturi�es of Long Term Borrowings

20  Current Liabili�es: Other financial liabili�es

21  Current Liabili�es- Provisions
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22  Other Current Liabili�es

23   Current Tax Liabili�es (Net)

24   Revenue from Opera�ons

25   Other income



106

26   Cost of Materials Consumed

27   Employee Benefits Expense

28   Finance Costs

29   Other Expenses
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29.1     Corporate Social Responsibili�es

30   Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (Net of Taxes)

31   Con�ngent Liabili�es and Commitments

32   Employee Benefits
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33   Related Party Disclosure
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34   Earnings per share (EPS)

35   Deferred Taxes
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36   Fair Value Measurement
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37   Risk management
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39   Auditor’s remunera�on

Other deriva�ve contracts related to swap of interest on the External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs). Posi�on is as below:
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai

42   Approval of financial statements



Independent Auditor’s 
Report (Consolidated)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Anupam Rasayan 
India Limited (herein after referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the 
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), which comprise 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (herein 
after referred to as the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group 
as at March 31, 2020 and its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

To the Board of Directors of Anupam Rasayan India Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We conducted audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Opinion
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The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance, including other comprehensive income, 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance 
with the Ind AS and accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board 
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of 
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible 
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the 
preparation of other information. The other information comprises of the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information Other than the  Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Report
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls systems in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The Consolidated financial Statements includes financial statements of

(a) 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assets of Rs. 363.20/- Lakhs as 
at March 31, 2020, and total revenues of Rs 933.26/- Lakhs, total Net profit after tax of Rs 
21.36/- lakhs for year ended on that date and net cash inflow of Rs 2.06/- Lakhs for the year 
ended March 31, 2020 as considered in the Statement which have been audited by their 
respective independent auditors.

The independent auditors report on the financial statement of the entities referred above 
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of the Subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of the other auditors and the 
procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph above. Our opinion on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below is 
not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done 
and the reports of the other auditors.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such 
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such 
other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss statement (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary Companies incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our Report in “Annexure A”, 
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Group and two subsidiaries company 
incorporated in India.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on 
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements:

i) The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii) The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Group.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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For Rajendra & Co
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No. 108355W

Akshay R. Shah
Partner 
Membership No. 103316
UDIN 20103316AAAADQ6412
Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 12, 2020
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The respective Board of Directors of the Group are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by Holding Company, considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ANUPAM RASAYAN 
INDIA LIMITED
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of 
and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements of Anupam Rasayan Public Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), as of that date. 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors, as referred to in the Other 
Matters paragraph, the Group  have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated financial 
statements criteria established by the Holding Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (the “Guidance Note”).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

Auditor’s Responsibility
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with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

reference to Consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.



Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates 
to two subsidiaries company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of 
the auditors of such company incorporated in India. 

Other Matters

For Rajendra & Co
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No. 108355W

Akshay R. Shah
Partner 
Membership No. 103316
UDIN 20103316AAAADQ6412
Place: Mumbai 
Date: September 12, 2020
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 

                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020   

 

                                     Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai

Balance Sheet (Consolidated)
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Statement of Profit 
& loss (Consolidated)
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai
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Cash Flow Statement
(Consolidated)
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai
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Statement of Changes In
Equity (Consolidated) 

As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                    

           

                                                          

    

                                         Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai
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Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statement
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NOTE 1 TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The Anupam Rasayan India Ltd. (the Company), along with its subsidiaries (collectively 
referred to as the Group) is engaged in manufacturing of chemicals, which are sold in local 
market as well as exported to other countries. The Company is a public company 
incorporated and domiciled in India, having its registered office in Surat, Gujarat, India.

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of ‘Anupam Rasayan 
India Ltd’ (‘the Holding Company’ or ‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries for the year ended 
on March 31, 2020.

(A) Statement of compliance

(i) Basis of preparation of financial statements
Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group had adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption has been 
carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards, with April 1, 2017 as the transition date. The transition was carried out from 
Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Act, which was the previous GAAP.

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year 
ending March 31, 2020 are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year ended March 31, 2020 has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of 
Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in 
the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the 
Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements.

1. Corporate Information

2. Significant accounting policies
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The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the 
same manner as Holding Company’s standalone financial statements. Profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Holding Company and to 
the non-controlling interests and have been shown separately in the financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent that part of the total comprehensive income and net 
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interest which is not owned, directly or indirectly, by 
the Holding Company.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

With effect from 1st April, 2019, Ind AS 116 – “Leases” (Ind AS 116) supersedes Ind AS 17 
– “Leases”. The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 using the prospective approach. The 
application of Ind AS 116 has resulted into recognition of ‘Right-of-Use’ asset with a 
corresponding Lease Liability in the Balance Sheet. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (`), which is also its 
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (`00,000), except when 
otherwise indicated.

(ii) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries. For this purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, 
controlled by the Holding Company is treated as subsidiary. The Holding Company 
together with its subsidiaries constitutes the Group. Control exists when the Holding 
Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee, is exposed to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect 
its returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Holding Company, directly or 
indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
from the date the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, gains control until the date when 
the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combine financial statements of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiaries line-by-line by adding together the like items of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income, expenses 
and unrealized profits/losses on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. 
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmonized to ensure the consistency 
with the policies adopted by the Holding Company.
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The gains/losses in respect of part divestment/dilution of stake in subsidiary companies not 
resulting in ceding of control, are recognized directly in other equity attributable to the 
owners of the Holding Company.

The gains/losses in respect of divestment of stake resulting in ceding of control in 
subsidiary companies are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The investment 
representing the interest retained in a former subsidiary, if any, is initially recognized at its 
fair value with the corresponding effect recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
on the date the control is ceded. Such retained interest is subsequently accounted as an 
associate or a joint venture or a financial asset.

(iii) Business Combination/Goodwill on consolidation

The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting. 
Acquisition related costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The 
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for 
recognition are recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortized, however, it is tested for impairment 
annually. In the event of cessation of operations of a subsidiary, the unimpaired goodwill is 
written off fully.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under common 
control are accounted at historical cost. The difference between any consideration given 
and the aggregate historical carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity 
are recorded in shareholders’ equity.

(iv) Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

All other items of Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition net of any 
trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently 
recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the 
asset ready for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and 
any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and 
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the costs are incurred. Major shutdown and 
overhaul expenditure is capitalized as the activities undertaken improves the economic 
benefits expected to arise from the asset It includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy based on Ind AS 
23 – Borrowing costs.  Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of PPE 
when completed and ready for intended use. Assets in the course of construction are 
capitalized in the assets under construction account. 
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At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of 
construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment 
and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any 
obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalized where the asset is available for use but 
incapable of operating at normal levels until a year of commissioning has been completed. 
Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalized. Property, plant 
and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative 
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and 
equipment as recognized in the financial statements on transition to Ind AS, measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.

Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and significant value and subsequent 
expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment arising on account of capital improvement 
or other factors are accounted for as separate components only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a 
separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Subsequent expenditure and componentization

Decommissioning cost includes cost of restoration. Provision for decommissioning costs is 
recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to plug and abandon a 
well, dismantle and remove a facility or an item of Property, Plant and Equipment and to 
restore the site on which it is located. The full eventual estimated provision towards costs 
relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring sites and other facilities are recognized in 
respective assets when the site is complete / facilities or Property, Plant and Equipment are 
installed. The amount recognized is the present value of the estimated future expenditure 
determined using existing technology at current prices and escalated using appropriate 
inflation rate till the expected date of decommissioning and discounted up to the reporting 
date using the appropriate risk-free discount rate. An amount equivalent to the 
decommissioning provision is recognized along with the cost of exploratory well or 
Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Decommissioning costs 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, 
less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of 
assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values

Depreciation and Useful life

17th Annual Report 2019-20



74136

over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following categories of assets, 
in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating 
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, 
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the 
end of each reporting period and if the expectations differ from the previous estimates, the 
change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a retrospective or 
prospective basis, whichever is nearly possible for the Group.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the 
asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is 
no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Asset Class

Building

Plant and machinery

Office equipment

Computer equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Electric Installations

Laboratory Equipment

10-30 Years

8-30 Years

3-20 Years

3-5 Years

10-20 Years

8-10 Years

10-30 Years

10-20 Years

Useful Life
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(v) Intangible Assests

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are recognized only on reasonable 
certainty and after completion of all activities related to the asset. 

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are 
determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and are recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized on a straight line basis over the 
following period:

(vi) Impairment of assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable 
value. At the each year end, assets are broadly evaluated for impairment. Provision for 
impairment of asset is made only if the recoverable amount of the asset goes below the 
carrying amount of the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless 
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit 
(CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the 
assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is 
reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Useful Life

3- 10  Years

De-recognition of Asset

Asset Class

Intangible assets
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 to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 

 Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date; 

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

The exercise price under a purchase option that the group is reasonably certain to 
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the group is reasonably certain 
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the 
group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

(vii) Leases

The group has applied Ind AS 116 for entering into leases in the current financial year and 
hence there was no need of restatement required to be done for the previous financial 
years.

As a lessee, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises 
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to 
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on 
which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or 
the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined 
on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is 
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are 
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease 
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, group’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: – 
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(viii) Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes party to 
a contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial 
liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction values and 
where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or 
deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such financial assets or liabilities, on 
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately 
in Profit or Loss.

Offset 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance 
sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts 
and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an 
index or rate, if there is a change in the group’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if group changes its assessment of whether it 
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to 
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment 
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in 
the statement of financial position.

The group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short 
term leases of real estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The group 
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
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Financial asset carried at amortized cost.
Financial asset carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial asset carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial asset carried at amortized cost (net of any write down for impairment, if any):

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when asset is held within a business model, whose 
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.  Such financial 
assets are subsequently measured at amortized costs using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method less 
impairment, if any. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.  
Cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial asset of the group are covered under 
this category.

Under the EIR method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value 
using EIR. The cumulative amortization using the EIR method of the difference between the initial 
recognition amount and maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal 
repayments, if any) of the financial asset over the relevant period of the financial asset to arrive at 
amortized cost at each reporting date.  The corresponding effect of the amortization under EIR method 
is recognized as interest income over the relevant period of the financial asset.  The same is included 
under “other income” in the statement of profit or loss.  The amortized cost of the financial asset is also 
adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

ii. Financial asset carried at FVTOCI:

Financial asset under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, 
when asset is held with a business model whose objective is to hold asset for both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets.  Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 
income.

iii. Financial asset carried at FVTPL:

Financial asset under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. 
Changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

(A) Financial Assets:

a. Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the company classifies financial asset in following broad categories:

b. Derecognition:

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or the Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has
substantially transferred all the risk and reward of the ownership of the financial asset.
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c. Impairment of financial asset: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for 
evaluating impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through 
profit and loss (FVTPL).

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all 
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which 
results from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected 
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Group uses 
historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. 
At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the 
forward looking estimates are analyzed. 

For other assets, the Group uses 12-month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there 
is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full 
lifetime ECL is used. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as 
income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 

The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(B) Financial Liablities:

a. Subsequent measurement:

b. Derecognition of financial liabilities:
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Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, currency swaps, forward 
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate. At the 
inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship 
to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy 
for undertaking the hedge. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on 
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are also subsequently measured at fair value. 

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken 
directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedge which is 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged 
item affects profit or loss or is treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently 
results in the recognition of a Non-Financial Assets or Non-Financial liability. Hedges that meet the 
criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

A. Cash Flow Hedge;
The Group designates derivative contracts or non-derivative Financial Assets/ Liabilities as hedging 
instruments to mitigate the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign 
exchange exposure on highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability or 
forecast cash transactions. 

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in 
the fair value of the derivative is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve being part of Other 
Comprehensive Income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging 
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument recognised in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in 
cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the 
occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, 
then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

B. Fair Value Hedge;
The Group designates derivative contracts or non-derivative Financial Assets/Liabilities as hedging 
instruments to mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in interest rates, 
foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and 
hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to 
the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to 
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of maturity.

c. Derivative financial instrument:
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(ix) Trade Recivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

(x) Inventories

Inventories comprise of Raw and packing materials, Work-in-progress, Finished goods, and 
Stores and spares. 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realizable value. Cost is determined 
on weighted average basis. Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods to their present 
location and condition. The cost of Work-in-progress and Finished goods comprises of 
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(xi) Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefit:

Employee benefits such as salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, expected 
cost of bonus, ex-gratia and performance-linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve 
months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and are 
expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(b) Post-employment benefits:

i) Defined contribution plans:
The contribution paid/payable under defined contribution plan is recognized during the 
period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Defined benefit plans:
The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity 
plans is the present value of the defined obligation at the end of the reporting period less 
the fair value of plan assets. The defined obligation is calculated annually based on actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a 
discount rate based on the market yield on government securities of a maturity period 
equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations at the 
Balance Sheet date.
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Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset) and 
any change in the effect of asset ceiling (if applicable) is recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income and is reflected in Retained earnings and the same is not eligible to 
be reclassified to Profit or Loss.

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses 
on settlements are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefits 
expense. Interest cost implicit in defined benefit employee cost is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under finance cost. Gains or losses on settlement of any 
defined benefit plan are recognized when the settlement occurs. Past service cost is 
recognized as expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and when the 
group recognizes related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation 
under the defined benefit plans to recognize the obligation on a net basis.

Leave Salary is considered as short term benefits and the same is accrued and paid within 
the working cycle of the business.

(xii) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money 
is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. 
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is 
recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of, a present obligation arising from past events, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; 
and a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. 

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation 
under the contract is recognized and measured as a provision.



145

(xiii) Revenue Recognition

The Group has adopted Ind-AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” effective 
from April 01, 2018.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the Group transfers control of the 
product. Control of the product transfers upon shipment of the product to the customer or 
when the product is made available to the customer, provided transfer of title to the 
customer occurs and the Group has not retained any significant risks of ownership or future 
obligations with respect to the product shipped. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net off 
returns, trade allowances, rebates and indirect taxes.

Other income: 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 

Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is 
established.

Government grants, which are revenue in nature and are towards compensation for the 
qualifying costs, incurred by the Group, are recognized as other income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. Government grant receivable 
in the form duty credit script is recognized as other income in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in the period in which the application is made to the government authorities and to the 
extent there is no uncertainty towards its receipt.

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises 
and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably.

(xiv) Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional currency and presentation currency of the group is Indian Rupee.

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency are recorded on 
initial recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet 
date, foreign currency monetary items are reported at the closing spot rate. Non-monetary 
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.
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(xv) Exceptional Items

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in 
order to improve an understanding of the performance of the Group is treated as an 
exceptional item and disclosed as such in the financial statements.

(xvi) Taxes on Income

The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income. In which case, the tax is also recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income. 

Current Tax
Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax 
credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based 
on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the Group’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or 
substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the 
extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of 
monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for:

(a) exchange gains or losses on foreign currency borrowings taken which are related to the 
acquisition or construction of  qualifying assets are adjusted in the carrying cost of such 
assets.

(b) exchange differences on derivatives transactions entered into in order to hedge foreign 
currency risks associated with underlying assets/liabilities which are classified as cash flow 
hedges. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in 
the cash flow hedging reserve being part of Other Comprehensive Income. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(xvii) Cash And Bank Balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked 
balances with banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short 
term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, 
are not included as part of cash and bank balances.

(xviii) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method where by the profit before tax is 
adjusted for the effect of the transaction of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of 
past and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 
and financing activities of the group are segregated.

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand 
deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are 
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the 
head “capital gains” are recognized and carried forward to the extent of available taxable 
temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period, 
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Considering intensive 
capital investment since last several years and based on the estimate of future forecasts of 
capital investments, the Group is expected to have higher deductions of depreciation as per 
Income Tax as compared to depreciation as per Books of Accounts. Deferred Tax is 
effectively considered not to be neutralized in foreseeable future and hence as per the 
policy of the Group, deferred tax is recognised at 75% of its effective value.

Transaction or event which is recognized outside Profit or Loss, either in Other 
Comprehensive Income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the 
liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there 
is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and 
where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax asset and the deferred tax liabilities 
relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.
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(xix) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, general or specific, that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of qualifying assets is capitalized as part of such assets. A qualifying asset is 
one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group determines the 
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual borrowing costs incurred 
on that borrowing during the year less any interest income earned on temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the 
extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 
asset. In case if the Group borrows generally and uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying 
asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are determined by applying a 
capitalizations rate to the expenditures on that asset. 

Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to 
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost. 

(xx) Securities Premiun

Securities premium include, the difference between the face value of the equity shares and 
the consideration received in respect of shares issued. The issue expenses of securities 
which qualify as equity instruments are written off against securities premium.

(xxi) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying 
amount is intended to be recovered principally through a sale (rather than through 
continuing use) when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its 
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset 
(or disposal group) and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for recognition 
as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at lower of 
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(xxii) Operating cycle for current and non-current classification

The group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current 
classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:



149

(xxiii) Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for bonus element in 
equity share. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic 
earnings per share to take into account the conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the 
period unless issued at a later date.

(xxiv) Key sources of estimation

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the 
management of the Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial 
statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & 
intangible assets, allowance for expected credit loss, future obligations in respect of 
retirement benefit plans,  fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual 
results and estimates is recognized in the period in which the results are known.

It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the date of reporting period; or
Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least 12 months after reporting period.

It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the date of reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting period current liabilities include the current portion of 
long-term financial liabilities.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets 
are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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i) Segment reporting

Revenue and Geographical Segments are identified based on the stratification of the risk 
and returns. The group operates only in the one revenue segment. i.e. Manufacturing of 
industrial chemicals. 

ii) Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments include the 
value of the contracts for the acquisition of the assets net of advances.
  
iii) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible temporary differences and 
unused tax losses for which there is probability of utilisation against the future taxable 
profit. The Group uses judgement to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and business 
developments.

iv) Global Health Pandemic on COVID-19

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing 
significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. In many countries, businesses 
are being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods of time. 
Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social 
distancing, and closures of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to 
businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown.  

In assessing the recoverability of Group’s assets such as Investments, Loans, intangible 
assets, Goodwill, Trade receivable etc. the Group has considered internal and external 
information. The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used basis 
the internal and external information/indicators of future economic conditions, the Group 
expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets.

v) Standards issued but not effective 

The amendments are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
April 2020.

a. Issue of Ind AS 117 – Insurance Contracts 

Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. It establishes the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the 
scope of the standard. Under the Ind AS 117 model, insurance contract liabilities will be 
calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with a provision for risk.

 Application of this standard is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s 
financial statements. 
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b. Amendments to existing Standards 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out amendments of the following accounting 
standards:

Ind AS 103 – Business Combination 2
Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes 
in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
Ind AS 40 – Investment Property 

The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact of the new amendments issued but not 
yet effective.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

2   Property, Plant and Equipment

2   CWIP, Intangible assests & Intangible assets under development
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3   Rights-of-Use Assets
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4   Non-Current Assets: Financial Assets - Investments4   Non-Current Assets: Financial Assets - Investments

5   Non-Current Assets: Other Financial Assets

6   Non-Current Assets: Other Non-Current Assets

7   Cureent Assets: Inventories
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8   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

9   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

10   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances

11   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Loans

12   Current Assets: Financial Assets - Others

13   Other Current Assets
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14   Share Capital

14   Other Equity
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15   Non-Current Liabili�es: Financial liabili�es - Borrowings
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16   Non-Current Liabili�es: Other financial liabili�es

17   Current Liabili�es: Financial liabili�es - Borrowings
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18   Current Liabili�es: Financial liabili�es - Trade Payables

20  Current Liabili�es: Other financial liabili�es

19  Current Liabili�es:  Fnancial liabili�es - Current Maturi�es of Long Term Borrowings
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21  Current Liabili�es- Provisions

22  Other Current Liabili�es

23   Current Tax Liabili�es (Net)

162
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24   Revenue from Opera�ons

25   Other income

26   Cost of Materials Consumed

27   Employee Benefits Expense

28   Finance Costs
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29   Other Expenses

29.1   Corporate Social Responsibilites
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30   Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (Net of Taxes)

31   Con�ngent Liabili�es and Commitments

32   Employee Benefits
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33   Related Party Disclosure
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34   Earnings per share (EPS)

35   Deferred Taxes
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36   Fair Value Measurement

*Exclude investments in other company Rs. 39,98,740/- measured at cost
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37   Risk management
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As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai

38    Auditor’s remunera�on

39

40    General Informa�on
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42   Approval of financial statements

As per our report of even date                                         For Rajendra & Co. 
For and on behalf of the Board,                                        Chartered Accountants
                                                                                                                                                                      Firm Reg. No. 108355W

 
Director(s)                        Director(s)                    Company Secretary              Chief Financial O cer      Partner 
                                                                                                        Mem. No. 103316 
Date : 04th September, 2020                                         Date : 12th September, 2020 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                                                       Place: Mumbai


